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Located approximately mid-way between the northern New Mexico towns of 
Espanola and Taos, the Embudo Historic District lies in the narrow canon of 
the Rio Grande on the river's west bank. "Embudo" (funnel), the name given 
by^Spanish settlers in the 17th century, well describes this part of the 
canon where its rocky hillsides, covered with cactus and juniper trees, 
rise steeply from the banks of the swiftly flowing river. Situated on a 
small plain where the valley suddenly widens, the historic district 
embraces a complex of structures erected circa 1880 by the Denver and Rio 
Grande Railroad, familiarly known in New Mexico as the "Chili Line." Also 
within the district-, at its south end where the canon again "narrows 
sharply-,- is the U.-S. Geological Survey Embudo- Stream Gaging Station. ° 
Established in 1888 by- order of Ma'jor John Wesley Powell, famous" western 
explorer and pioneer hydrographer, the gaging station is the"first'unit of 
its kind- to be- buil-t anywhere. " ~

Access to the district is provided by a bridge over the Rio Grande 
extending from State Highway #68 which follows a narrow bluff between the 
hillside and the shoreline. The third structure built at Embudo to span 
the river, the present bridge is made entirely of wood except for rods and 
cables which brace the high trusses on each side. It was originally 
constructed at Espanola but was transported 20 miles upstream to Embudo 
in three sections after it had been swept from its previous location by a 
disastrous flood in 1920. The bridge is supported by two piers, one at 
midstream composed of log cribbing filled with rock, and one on the west 
bank made entirely of stone and masonry. Although the bridge has provided 
over 50 years of service at Embudo and has been recently rehabilitated, 
there is now a distinct sag in the east span which is disconcerting to 
travelers. / ^ . . ..

On the west side.of the district next to the original' D&RG right of way 
is the Embudo depot, a pitch roofed, 25'x30' frame structure. Some time 
soon after.1912 the building was .covered with a veneer of indigenous 
river rock applied by station agent Henry W. Wallace. A consumptive who 
came to New Mexico in that year, Wallace recovered his health in the 
*alubrious climate of the Southwest and lived on to enclose every nearby 
structure with stone. Even the interior walls of the ticket office in the 
depot are embellished with a wainscoting of quartz-like rock. The ticket 
window is composed of locomotive fire-door chains hanging from a piece of 
narrow gauge rail. Decorated with elaborate brackets under the eaves, the 
roof is covered with red composition material and is surmounted by two 
stone chimneys. Recently the roof has deteriorated sufficiently to permit 
water damage to a portion of the plaster ceiling in the ticket office. 
The original double doors into the baggage room in the north half of the 
building have been replaced by a window made from the original transom. 
The engineer's order board, mounted on an iron rod at right angles to the 
station wall, now droops forlornly to the ground.

Approximately fifty feet north of the station, and standing at right 
angles to it, is the freight depot. Of similar construction, it is

(See Continuation Sheet Page 1)
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Within the boundaries of northern New 'Mexico' s Emtmdo Historic District 
two )elements are Combined, to make the area worthy of historic recognition. 
These include the cluster of original structures erected circa 1880 'to 
service an^impo_rtant stop on the Denver and Rio Grande Ra'ilroad and th6 r - 
site of the l^TFstT stream gaging station established by the U.S. Geological 
Survey^ "in 1888, a significant advance in the science of hydrology'. Seven­ 
teenth century Spanish documents indicate that the first settlement in the 
region to bear the name "Embudo" was at the present village of Dixon, two 
and one-half miles north where Embudo Creek flows into the Rio Grande. 
Because of its location on a main route between Taos and Santa Fe, Embudo 
was often mentioned in the accounts of New Mexico travelers, from 18th 
century Hispanic churchmen to 19th century U.S. military observers and 
contemporary railroad enthusiasts who were fascinated by the line's narrow 
gauge construction and the atmosphere of northern New Mexico.

In 1760 Pedro Tamar6n, Bishop of Durango, passed through Embudo during 
a rare episcopal visitation of New Mexico .and was followed six years later 
by Fray Francisco Atanasio Dominguez, official inspector'for the Franciscan 
Order, who commented on the beauty of the location. After U.S. occupation 
of New Mexico Embudo was the scene of a skirmish in January, 1847 between 
U.S. troops under Colonel Sterling Price and Mexican and Taos Pueblo 
Indian insurrectos retreating to Taos after the battle of Santa Cruz de la 
Canada, east of present Espafiola. In 1854 Secretary of War-Jefferson Davis 
allocated $20,000 from a Congressional appropriation for improvement of the 
Santa Fe-Taos road through the village.

The present location of the historic district assumed importance in 1880 
when the site was chosen to be a station on the D&RG, then building south 
from Alamosa, Colorado to Espafiola. The name "Embudo" was taken from the 
older village. Originally conceived by entrepreneur "General" William 
Jackson Palmer as a trunk line connecting Denver with El Paso and eventually 
Mexico City, the line began construction from Denver along the front range 
of the Rockies in 1871. Defeated by its arch-rival, the Atchison, Topeka 
and Santa Fe, in the famous race for Raton Pass r the most desirable route 
for right of way into New Mexico, D&RG officials changed their point of 
approach to the west side of the Sangre de Cristos. Using an existing 
branch over La Veta Pass into Colorado's San Luis Valley, the executives 
proposed to build south from Alamosa.

After the necessary surveys were made, construction began from Antonito, 
Colorado towards Santa Fe in the spring of 1880. The territorial capital's 
aspirations were temporarily dashed, however, when D&RG officers drew up a 
ten year compact with the Santa Fe railroad in which the former agreed not

(See Continuation Sheet Page 2)



MAJOR BIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES
Bloom, Lansing B. ed.,"Bourke on the Southwest," New Mexico Historical

Review. Vol. XII, No. 4, October, 1937. 
Chappell, Gordon, "To Santa Fe by Narrow Gauge: the D&RG's "Chili Line,"

Colorado Rail Annual. Issue No. 7, Golden, 1969. 
Frazier, Arthur H. and Wilbur Heckler, "Embudo, New Mexico, Birthplace of

Systematic Stream Gaging," Geological Survey Professional Paper 778, 
Washington, 1972.___ (See Continuation Sheet Page 3)__________

GEOGRAPHICAL DATA
ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY Approximate ly 18 acres.
UTM REFERENCES

A|i,3| |4lli3l7|
ZONE EASTING

c|ml Ulii3L3j
fi I

?l
ol
ol

U,olo»7l4,
NORTHING
I4.olo.6l9,

2jLO!

2, o|
BJ1.3I 

ZONE
oh al

14 ll.3LZiO.Ol
EASTING
1411,313! 4iOl

|4-iOlO,/|pi6
NORTHING
k lolo.el 9i6

jOj

id
BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION (see Cqntinuatiori^S.heet #4)

LIST ALL STATES AND COUNTIES FOR PROPERTIES OVERLAPPING STATE OR COUNTY BOUNDARIES 

STATE CODE COUNTY CODE

STATE CODE COUNTY CODE

FORM PREPARED BY
NAME/TITLE

______John O. Baxter, Archivist
ORGANIZATION

State Records Center and Archives
DATE

February 7, 1978
STREET & NUMBER

______404 Montezuma
TELEPHONE

827-2321
CITY OR TOWN

Santa Fe, SNew Mexico 87503

STATE HISTORIC PRESERVATION OFFICER CERTIFICATION
THE EVALUATED SIGNIFICANCE OF THIS PROPERTY WITHIN THE STATE IS: 

NATIONAL__ STATE _X_ LOCAL___

As the designated State Historic Preservation Officer for the .National .Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law 89-665), I 
hereby nominate this property for inclusion in the National Register and certify that it has been evaluated according to the 
criteria and procedures set forth by the National Park Service.

STATE HISTORIG PRESERVATION OFFICER SIGNATURE Afa
TITLE

GPO 888-445



Form No. 1 
(Rev 10-74)

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE 1NTHRIOR 
NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES 
INVENTORY « NOMINATION FORM

CONTINUATION SHEET__________________ITEM NUMBER 7_____PAGE #1_______________________

reinforced on its east end with massive stone buttresses, also the work of 
Mr. Wallace. It is topped by the same composition roofing described 
above. The two structures are joined by a newer building which was used 
as a dining hall during the late 1960s when the complex was used briefly 
by Je"mez House, a privately supported school and foster home. Towards the 
river to the east there are a meat house and root cellar, also encrusted 
in stone, which were used in conjunction with a dining room, no longer 
extant. When in operation it provided passengers with meals while the 
steam engines took on water and coal. Nearby stand three pitched roof 
log buildings erected in the 1940s after the railroad had sold the 
property to an eastern buyer who planned, unsuccessfully, to develop a 
riverside resort. An owner's residence and six-unit motel are south of 
the root cellar while the third, now used as a caretaker's house, is west 
of the depot across the abandoned right of way.

Rising approximately thirty-five feet above the old road bed across 
a small arroyo north of the other railroad structures is the tall water 
tower. Its cylindrical tank rests on a hexagonal base made of extremely 
heavy bridge ties braced and cross-braced with wood timbers and iron rods. 
Surmounted by a conical "tin" roof, the tank is made of double thicknesses 
of wood encircled by rods and turnbuckles. Although the outer layer has 
deteriorated somewhat on the tank's north side, it is otherwise in excel­ 
lent condition. During the years when it regularly replenished the D&RG 
engines it was filled by a steam powered pump set among the cottonwoods 
along the river bank. Prior to 1940, one year before the tracks were 
taken up and the line abandoned, the north side of the arroyo was also 
the site of a fifty foot turntable used by auxilliary engines to help the 
mixed freight and passenger trains up the formidable 4% grade of the 
Barranca Hill to the north.

Separated by a barbed wire fence from the railroad buildings, the 
stream gaging station is one thousand feet southeast of the depot. During 
its 90-year history the station has been located in various places 
including a small row boat and at the base of one of the bridge pilings. 
Since 1914 its instruments for stream measurement have been installed at 
the present location, a small 6' square building standing on a concrete 
shaft with a ladder inside which reaches down to the water level. The 
upper portion is covered with the ubiquitous veneer of river rock and is 
topped by a red tile shed roof. Beside this structure, a one-man ferry 
runs across the river on a steel cable supported by steel tripods on each 
bank. When the Rio Grande is too deep to wade, this device permits the 
record keeper to propel himself over the water to gather necessary 
scientific data as to depth, width aft.ci velocity bf the 3tr.e__ai7i. still used 
regularly by U.S.G.S. technicians, this portion of the district is in an 
excellent state of repair.
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to lay more than ninety miles of track into New Mexico in return for a 
monopoly of the lucrative traffic from central Colorado's Leadville area. 
Using somewhat shoddy construction methods, the D&RG was completed into 
Espanola, the ninety mile limit, on December 31, 1880 but another six years 
elapsed before a subsidiary, the Texas, Santa Fe and Northern, closed the 
thirty-four mile gap to Santa Fe.

Nine months after the line was opened a U.S. military observer, 
Lieutenant John G. Bourke, described part of his rail journey north from 
Espanola as follows:

At Embudo begins a canon of great severity and much 
majesty. Here the train twists around the sharpest 
of curves, pushes up the steepest of grades where 
engineering skill of the highest order has been 
called into service to fight the obstacles interposed 
by nature...

Extra engines were required to propel the little trains over these 
"obstacles;" thus, the turntable was installed at Embudo to take care of 
the necessary "pushers." The "Chili Line" soon became the lifeline joining 
the Hispanic plazas and ranchos of the upper Rio Grande Valley to the 
larger world of commerce and trade. For many years the line's combination 
freight and passenger trains brought all kinds of L.C.L. (less than carload) 
merchandise into the area and was the prime carrier for its exports - 
lumber, livestock, apples and pinon nuts.

Embudo was selected for the stream gaging station because of its location 
in an arid region on a southwestern river unlikely to freeze in winter. 
Its proximity to the railroad which provided easy access into a remote area 
was also an important consideration. Established in 1888 under the 
direction of Frederick Haynes Newell, the station was part of a comprehen­ 
sive program for resource management proposed by Major John Wesley Powell. 
Following his epic explorations of the Colorado River in 1869 and 1871, 
Powell realized the necessity for a Federal survey of western water 
resources, a need put forth in his controversial "Report on the Lands of 
the Arid Regions of the United States" published by Congress in 1878. His 
plan included several innovations in the development of hydrology as a 
science for optimum use of the nation's western land and water reserves. A 
full ten years elapsed, however, before Powell had the opportunity as 
director of the Interior Department's Geological Survey to put his theories 
into practise.

The gaging station at Embudo was established not only to collect data on
(See Continuation Sheet Page 3)
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the flow of the Rio Grande but also to serve as a training ground for a 
select group of young engineers, who after studying there, would go on to 
assume positions of responsibility in Powell's Irrigation Survey program 
throughout the West. In December, 1888 a tent "campus" was erected to 
accommodate fourteen students most of whom had been educated at eastern 
colleges. During the next five months, the trainees endured the rigors of 
Embudo's 5,800 feet elevation making regular temperature readings, sound­ 
ings and velocity measurements from a makeshift raft moored above the camp. 
Evaporation was determined in a bread pan commandeered from the commissary 
until more sophisticated equipment became available. The classes were 
terminated in April, 1889 but the gaging station continued to function 
with various D&RG station agents making the necessary readings. In 1915 
the State of New Mexico took over the station, but on July 1, 1931 
responsibility for its management reverted to the Geological Survey which 
has maintained it ever since.

Although the stream gaging station is a replacement of the original, it 
has been in its present location for over sixty years and has importance 
as the first of its kind to be built anywhere. While not unique, the 
wooden bridge is of a type becoming increasingly rare in both material and 
design. The railroad buildings are among the last remaining to mark the 
sixty year era of the "Chili Line." Together, the elements of the Embudo 
Historic District combine to memorialize an important period in the history 
of New Mexico and the Southwest.

#9
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Verbal Boundary Description:

Beginning at the southwest corner of the intersection of US 64 and Embudo Road; 
proceed north approximately for 1095 feet; from this point proceed southwest 
for 1870 feet; from this point proceed southeast to the east bank of the river; 
proceed northeast along the east bank of the river to the starting point.

Boundary Justification:

The boundary of the historic district is drawn to dnclude the pertinent structures,
The gaging station is at the southwest corner, the building complex and water tank
at the northeast corner, and the bridge at the east corner.




